
 1 

 
National Association of County Agricultural Agents 

November 2, 2006 Conference Call Minutes 
 

Actions Taken .........................................................................................................1 
Call to order ............................................................................................................1 
SARE Fellows Program...........................................................................................1 
County Agent Magazine..........................................................................................2 
Facility Fee Refund.................................................................................................2 
Code of Ethics.........................................................................................................2 
Public Relations and Ag Issues Committee Name Change.......................................3 
JCEP Regional Leadership Workshop.....................................................................3 
Winter Board...........................................................................................................3 
Electronic Mailing List Changes..............................................................................3 
Pre-approval/payment for airline reservations..........................................................3 
Communications......................................................................................................4 
Other Business ........................................................................................................4 

Actions Taken 
Chuck Schwartau moved that we not refund the facilities fee unless it was a mistake on 
registration, motion was seconded and passed.  Henry voted nay 
 
Henry Dorough moved to adopt the Code of Ethics with the suggestions offered by Gary 
Hall.  The motion was seconded by Michele Hebert and the motion passed. 
 

Call to order 
President Chuck Otte called the conference call meeting to order at 3:00 pm EST.  
Members present were: Chuck Otte, Fred Miller, Rick Gibson, Leon Church, Chuck 
Schwartau, Henry Dorough, James Devillier, Stan Moore, Michele Hebert, Gary Hall, 
and Scott Hawbaker. 

SARE Fellows Program 
Rick Gibson, Vice President discussed the SARE Fellows Program and stated he had an 
interesting experience attending the SARE meeting and watching how they do business.  
The principle investigator issue was addressed, Rick felt that would be a major concern 
but it was resolved by the appointment of Jim Freeburn as our contact person.  Chuck 
Otte asked about whether Kim was going get him names to appoint to the committee.  
Brad Brummond from ND is a name that has been suggested.   We will need one person 
from each region.  The first SARE Fellows Program seminar will be in Arizona.  The 
2007 funds from SARE will be approximately $40,000 as sponsorship or donation to 
NACAA for this program. 



 2 

County Agent Magazine 
Scott Hawbaker reported that the latest edition of the County Agent magazine was at the 
printer at the time of this conference call should be sent out to the membership the 
following week. 

Facility Fee Refund 
Chuck Otte asked Chuck Schwartau where we were on the finances with the 2006 
AM/PIC.  We are near to close out with Ohio and Kentucky.  Chuck Schwartau reported 
that we still need to do some bookkeeping and pay some late check requests (i.e. 
Scholarship Fund).  He further reported that we should be looking at around a $15,000 
profit.  Chuck Otte asked for the boards feelings regarding the facilities fee refund. Chuck 
Schwartau stated he felt we would be setting a bad precedent if we refund.  He further 
stated that registrants might feel they will get it back anyway so they will look else where 
for lodging.  Chuck S. stated we should do an education job so our members understand 
why we charge the fee and why it is important.  Fred Miller agreed with Chuck and felt 
we should not make the refund.  Fred stated we will most likely need to have a facilities 
fee in North Carolina.  Fred further stated that we need to stand on what we said we were 
going to do.  Henry Dorough stated he agreed with the need for a facilities fee and agreed 
that we not refund this yearÕs fees. But also stated he originally didnÕt like facilities fee 
until he understood the need.  It is important to educate our membership as to why we 
have them.   Scott Hawbaker asked Gary Hall if it was appropriate to make a negative 
motion.  Gary noted that motions are made to change the status quo.  Chuck Otte noted 
that a motion was made at post board that we not refund unless a mistake was made on 
the registration, this motion was postponed to a later time.  Henry asked what we planned 
to do with the facilities fee if not refunded.  Chuck stated it goes to the general fund as 
does other registration fees.  Henry asked further do we have money set aside for an 
AM/PIC failure. Chuck Schwartau stated we have around $100,000 in a reserve fund.  
Fred noted that we also have an event insurance policy to protect our failure. Scott 
Hawbaker responded that no this insurance policy is for catastrophic events.  It does not 
protect us from low registration.  Chuck Otte asked Henry if he had a suggestion as to 
what to do with this money that is not refunded.  Henry suggested we put it into a 
contingency fund to cover NACAA if there is a major failure of an AM/PIC.  Scott asked 
Gary Hall to clarify the $100,000 reserve; is it considered the annual meeting reserve.  
Gary agreed that that is its purpose, but not specifically stated as such.  Chuck Otte would 
like the board to consider this fund and how much more is needed.  Henry and Michele 
Hebert stated that the association needs to put into writing the purpose of the contingency 
fund for any shortage or failure of the AM/PIC.  It was further suggested that a 
percentage of the profit go into the contingency fund as well.   Chuck Schwartau moved 
that we not refund the facilities fee unless it was a mistake on registration, motion was 
seconded and passed.  Henry voted nay.  Chuck stated that he wanted to have further 
discussion on the issue of the contingency/reserve fund at winter board.  The fiscal 
committee will be given this task.  

Code of Ethics 
Chuck Otte noted the changes that were suggested to the code of ethics and had been sent 
via email to the board. This email is attached as item A to these minutes.  Gary Hall had 
also made suggestions.  Changes were made to the first sentence and to the Third 
statement and Sixth these changes were made to more appropriately represent todayÕs 



 3 

extension professional.  Henry Dorough moved to adopt the Code of Ethics with the 
suggestions offered by Gary Hall.  The motion was seconded by Michele Hebert and the 
motion passed. 

Public Relations and Ag Issues Committee Name Change 
Rick Gibson regretted to report that he has nothing new to report from this committee.  
Chuck Otte noted that we then will not take any action at this time.  Since this name 
change information was needed by November 1 in order for the change to appear in the 
Awards edition we need to wait on this issue.  Rick will talk with the committee to light a 
fire to see if we can get this accomplished this coming year. 

JCEP Regional Leadership Workshop 
Chuck Otte noted that as we get closer to these workshops,  he and Scott will be getting 
together to limit number of rooms the association will reserve and therefore have to pay 
for. 

Winter Board 
Rick Gibson reported that the Council Chairs and he will be coming into Grand Rapids 
on Tuesday the 12th.  Meetings with them and Rick will begin that evening.  Chuck 
Schwartau and Paul Wigley will need to come in early as well. 

Electronic Mailing List Changes 
Chuck Otte noted that we have changed the way we access the electronic mailing lists.  
Stan Moore stated that the mailing list seemed to work ok for him when he tried the new 
system.  He also noted that he would like to see who he is sending the message to rather 
than showing that it had been sent as a blind copy.  Fred Miller expressed concern that we 
donÕt want to have folks forward our email with our addresses to the other person.  Henry 
Dorough was supportive and suggests that we let John Dorner go ahead with the secure 
emailing list.  Michele Hebert stated that mailing listed worked on her Netscape system. 
Chuck Otte will talk to John to discuss any further needs we have, he further stated that 
John has been doing a very good job for us and is thinking outside the box. 

Pre-approval/payment for airline reservations 
Chuck Otte asked do we need to have a promissory note for payment of airline 
reservations before actual travel.  Fred Miller, Henry Dorough and Michelle Hebert all 
agreed we donÕt need to have another sheet of paper; we should be professional enough 
to reimburse the association.  Gary Hall asked if this promissory note allows for advance 
payment, Chuck Otte answered yes, but the ticket had to be purchased before hand so it is 
not really an advance, just an early payment prior to travel using the voucher method. 
Fred Miller noted we may need to visit the current voucher so that we can include some 
statement of promissory on the revised voucher.  Stan Moore suggested that we simply 
use the current voucher and but put into the directions statement that reimbursement can 
obtained prior to actual travel on purchased airline ticket.  Chuck summarized that it 
appears we agree that we do not need a promissory note but that we need to look at the 
voucher and add some type of statement to it that covers this issue.  Chuck Schwartau 
and Paul Wigley should work with John Dorner and determine what can be changed on 
the voucher to address this concern. 



 4 

Communications 
Chuck Otte had asked Mickey Cummings to look at communications within the 
association.  This issue was brought to our attention as a result of the Futuring Committee 
report.  Mickey met via conference call with the Vice Directors and Council Chairs.  
Mickey had emailed the board with three suggestions.  This report is attached as item B.  
Suggestion # 1 Ð Fred Miller asked who is going to be responsible for determining key 
times; he further noted that this type of thing is already in the committee handbook.  
Chuck Schwartau agreed that much of this is already in place but we just need to 
reinforce the protocol for all levels of committee work.  By sending out the checklist 
coming from the handbook would reinforce the responsibility that each level must 
complete. He also stated that state contacts change often and it is a problem.  Rick agreed 
with what had been said, he is currently trying to get the committee chair lists; he further 
stated we are trying to get a hold of a moving target.  Fred Miller noted that because of 
this rapid change we need to have states involved in updating these lists in addition to the 
Vice President. Chuck Otte noted that no decisions need to be made at this time.  He 
stressed that we canÕt communicate too much. 

Other Business 
Chuck Otte noted that Mickey Cummings can not judge Outstanding Young Farmer 
program as he will be gone out of the country.  Chuck asked Fred Miller what he would 
be doing in early February.  There is a need to have someone represent us in Phoenix.  
Chuck and Fred will talk. 
 
Henry Dorough Ð stated that Florida asked about the suggestions they made at Pre-Board, 
they are expecting us to take actions.  The board forwarded these suggestions to the 
Councils. Chuck will visit with Rick Gibson as to the status of these and will bring up at 
Winter Board.    
 
Stan Moore asked Chuck Schwartau about setting the budget for Michigan AM/PIC;  
Mickey has sent the proposed budget to Fiscal Committee, a conference call will held 
around Thanksgiving.  Fred Miller thanked Michigan and Stan for their help with gifts 
for the donors.  These gifts will show off the Michigan products and the upcoming 
AM/PIC. 
 
Leon Church asked the Regional Directors for help in contacting states to obtain the 
current list of state officers.  Chuck Otte asked Leon to send out the list of states that have 
not responded to the respective regional directors.  
 
We will not have a December conference call as we will have our Winter Board Meeting.  
Chuck wished us all a Happy Thanksgiving. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Leon J. Church, NACAA Secretary 
 


